
Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 1 

July 6, 2016 

SANTA CLARA CITY COUNCIL WORK MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 6, 2016 

MINUTES 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 

UTAH, met for a Work Meeting on Wednesday, July 6, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. in the City Council 

Chambers of the Town Hall at 2603 Santa Clara Drive, Santa Clara, Utah. 

 

Notice of the time, place and agenda of the meeting was provided to the Spectrum and to each 

member of the governing body by emailing a copy of the Notice and Agenda to the Spectrum 

and also, along with any packet information, to the mayor and each council member, at least 

two days before the meeting. 

 

Present:    Mayor Rick Rosenberg           

Council Members: Jerry Amundsen, Ken Sizemore, Herb Basso and Jarett Waite 

      City Manager:         Edward Dickie 

City Recorder:      Chris Shelley  

 

Others Present: Brock Jacobsen, Assistant City Manager; Brad Hays, Parks Director; Corey 

Bundy, Building Official; Dan Nelson, Fire Chief; Melodie Hayes; Allen Lyle, Cobble Creek; 

Tim Lyle; Dennis Garr, Cobble Creek; Ethan Snyder; Michael, Cobble Creek; Curtis Jensen 

  

1. Call to Order:  Mayor Rosenberg called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

 

- Councilwoman Hafen was excused from the meeting. 

  

2. Working Agenda:  
 

A. General Business: 

 

1. Discuss a Process for the possible Amendment and Revision of the Santa Clara City’s 

General Plan for the South Hills and Downtown areas.  

  

- Mayor Rosenberg said there has been a lot of discussion concerning the South Hills 

area and its connection to the downtown area.  There has been a lot of interest from 

residents concerning the development of the South Hills and Downtown.  He said the 

process needs to start to consider some amendments and revisions of the General Plan 

especially as it impacts those two areas.  The BLM has indicated that development out 

there will be limited.  We will have the opportunity for the RP&P Park.  There is a lot 

of new trail alignments out there.  The BLM has a very extensive trail and recreation 

plan for that area.  The first corridor that will probably come into effect is the 

Plantations Drive corridor.   

- Ed Dickie, City Manager, said that the park will be by the water tank. 

- Herb Basso talked about whether the Council should consider changing the General 

Plan to support BLM’s present philosophy verses something the City has there.  Maybe 

keeping some of the City’s plans in.  The BLM’s Administration can change and so 

can their philosophy.  It would be harder for someone to develop the property if it 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 2 

July 6, 2016 

wasn’t proposed. 

- Mayor Rosenberg stated that the corridor might provide opportunity for development 

but it is there for a transportation belt loop for Washington County.  He understands 

that it will be like the Southern Corridor.  It will definitely have limited access.  It 

would connect Hwy 91 to I 15.  A lot of the parcels along it are privately developed.  

The Council and Mayor Rosenberg discussed the map of the corridor, the BLM area 

and South Hills.   

- Ed Dickie stated that BLM has no interest in releasing any more land because of the 

recreational, with the biking and things like that.  That’s why Mayor wanted to bring 

this forward and decide what to do with the South Hills.   

- Mayor Rosenberg continued to discuss the BLM areas and what can and cannot be 

developed.  Tonight’s meeting is to talk about the process and give Staff a little bit of 

direction so that process can begin.  We can have the BLM meet with Planning 

Commission and with Council.  They should be involved in this planning effort for out 

there as well.  The residents need to have some information given them especially in 

the Downtown area.  The recreational area out there will be big.  This is public land 

and can’t be sold.   

- Herb Basso said that area will need to have a services oriented facility.  He would 

like to include this subject into future discussions.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that one of the things we need to do early in the game is have 

the BLM come over and get the BLM Planning Team to meet with the Planning 

Commission and bring what their vision is for the property.  It is very different from 

what our General Plan is.   

- Corey Bundy said that the State law says that if you are going to modify the General 

Plan you need to notify the residents.  You need to advertise it in the paper for 10 days, 

send out mailings to the residents.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that last time we did a series of workshops with the public and 

he would like to do that again and have it take place over a period of time. 

- Herb Basso asked about the shooting range. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said the County is the lead on that. 

- Brad Hays said that it may be a little while before the County is ready to move 

forward but the City can move ahead with our EA. 

- Ed Dickie said that we can do work meetings or meet before the regular City Council 

meetings or just have an open house for this only on a separate night. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said he thinks there does need to be a separate meeting for this.  

The sooner the better. 

- Ed Dickie asked the Council when they would like to do this. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that he will let Planning Commission set the pace for the 

meetings.  The other thing that needs to come into play is with the Historic District.  

They have new guidelines that the Committee has been working on and that should be 

brought into this discussion too.  The South Hills and the Downtown are linked.  They 

should be discussed together.  We need to take the opportunity to educate the residents 

going through this process.   

- Corey Bundy asked that when we are discussing and doing these workshops, are we 

looking at a modification for the whole General Plan even of what we created so far.  

- Mayor Rosenberg said that he thinks we will be amending at least those two areas, 

the South Hills and the Historical District. And if you are going to go through it look at 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 3 

July 6, 2016 

some other things that we already know about such as the SITLA property.  The 

planning is evolving in these areas. 

- Ed Dickie said that the Planning Commission, which is meeting on July 12 should put 

this on their agenda to set up the time line to do some open meetings.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that if they can get some schedules they can put it in the 

newsletter and get some announcements out there.  He asked when the notices have to 

be done, when the discussions are going to start or when the amendment is finalized 

and coming through.  The Planning Commission will have to do a public hearing. 

- Corey Bundy said that when he read the State Law it said you need to do the 

notification before you start talking about it.  You need to send a notice to everyone 

and let them know that the process is starting.  Each affected address.  He read from 

the State Code Book on the process.  He said he will visit with Matt Ence, City 

Attorney and discuss the process. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said to talk to Planning Commission and see what their schedule is 

and let the City Council know and we will start the planning. 

- Curtis Jensen said the he feels that the Mayor is on the right track.  He said there 

might be some other areas.  He said they may give the Council some input on some 

other areas that they may want to address at the same time. 

- Ken Sizemore had a question to clarify. What are the feelings about the open house 

verses the hearings? 

- Mayor Rosenberg said he would like the Planning Commission to include the open 

house in the schedule because the Land Use Authority would host the open house and 

the Council would attend as well as anyone else who wanted to.  The meetings with the 

Planning Commission and the BLM may want to happen before the open house so that 

information will be prepared for the open house.  Definitely get information from the 

County too before the open house and encourage the BLM people to be at the open 

house. 

- Ken Sizemore said the dilemma is they are in the midst of draft verses final and they 

may be reluctant to make any calls about land use out on the South Hills until their 

final document. 

- Ed Dickie told Corey to get with the contact person at the BLM and get with them to 

set that up. 

- Ken Sizemore reviewed the process: preliminary meetings with the Planning 

Commission and the BLM, an open house, formal public hearings, develop alternative 

changes. 

 

2. Discussion of possible amendment for PDR Zone of Cobble Creek Townhomes and 

Access. 

 

- Corey Bundy said they have had some discussions on the Cobble Creek development 

and the access road.  He said they have some options. 

- Ed Dickie said that Staff was directed by Council to get together with the engineer 

and the developer and others to see if we can find an option for a different access as far 

as to get to North Town road, what to do with Tuscany Drive and Jacob Drive.  

Council feels like Jacob Drive is a parking lot access to the park.  When they met they 

came up with a couple of options. 

- Corey Bundy said the first option is to extend the road up into Paradise Village.  A 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 4 

July 6, 2016 

second access could be a 20-foot asphalt along Patricia.  The School District, which 

will be developing an elementary school to the south, has agreed to put curb, gutter and 

sidewalk along Tuscany and Patricia.  Tuscany would be an access into the park.  He 

said they talked about putting some elevated speed bumps or areas.  In the future the 

main access north and south would be Patricia.  

- Ed Dickie said that the thought for Jacob Drive through the park is to make sure there 

is a stop sign on Jacob, a stop sign on Tuscany and a sign that says “Not a through 

street”.  A lot of things to discourage the traffic.  We could even look at putting in a 

crash gate. The school district is interested in Patricia being the main road through.   

- Mayor Rosenberg asked what the recommendation Staff was going to make to 

Council next week. 

- Corey Bundy said the recommendation is that the road goes up to North Town from 

this development, that Patricia is improved and that we put the slowing or 10 mph 

speed bumps and so forth through the park area and limit the access to Jacob. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that the developer and some homeowners are present at this 

meeting and asked if anyone would like to make comments on the proposals that are 

going to be made to Council.  He said that this is a Work Meeting and there won’t be 

any decisions made tonight. 

- Ethan Snyder, 2326 Jacob Drive, said that they were told that this was going to be 

taken up on the July 13 meeting.  He said a multitude of people are planning on 

coming to that meeting.  He said he just heard about this meeting.  The original plan 

was the stub street through Paradise Village at Zion and it’s still unclear to him why 

this was pushed aside.  He said it seems they are up against dollar signs more then 

actually would make the most sense.  He said he thought this was attempted to be 

buried.  He said if Jacob is left open it will be used.  He said he doesn’t buy it that this 

is going to be a 10mph and be discouraged to use.  If this is going to be connected then 

the residents are not being heard.  The issue is the number of trips that will be 

generated by this project going past Jacob and severely affecting the value and feel of 

his neighborhood.  He said that if this allowed to be open then they have not been 

heard and the Council has not understood their concern.  If the park access is the issue 

allow park access from both sides.  Residents can go down Tuscany to reach that 

section of the parking lot.  This is an issue of safety and not convenience.  He said that 

he knows there are similar concerns for Patricia Drive.  For a long-term standpoint, the 

original plan, through Paradise Village and Tuscany make the most sense.  If Tuscany 

is an issue, it can be improved.   

- Michael Lee, 2312 Jacob Drive, said he is grateful that the Council is considering 

adding an access over through the Village.  His concerns are with these other accesses 

he doesn’t understand why an access through Jacob Drive would still be necessary.  He 

said that the City is trying to discourage access but making it an access.  He said he 

was discouraged by the talk of if it gets bad enough the City could add a gate.  That is 

discouraging because how will we know if it gets bad enough.  Well if enough people 

come in and complain then the City would add a gate to discourage it even more.  If we 

don’t want people to use it, why make it an option at all?  Speed bumps are ineffective.  

He said to please don’t consider making Jacob an access.   

- Dennis Garr, 3456 Mulberry Drive, said he is one of the developers.  He said they 

really care about the neighborhoods and safety.  He said they never really wanted to go 

down Jacob.  He said they thought they had the two accesses coming in on Tuscany.  



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 5 

July 6, 2016 

Jacob is a designated street.  He said he knows there is controversy.  On the Master 

Plan Jacob should go through to Paradise up to North Town.  He said they don’t really 

care if it does or not.  He said they met with Staff, the School Board, other landowners 

and that’s when they got talking about the School Board putting in curb and gutter on 

Patricia.  Paradise Village is a commercial area.  Everybody has concerns of safety.  He 

said that when residents bought on Jacob they didn’t realize that it is a dedicated street 

and will be a through street.  He said they are willing to work with whatever they can 

do.  He said they want to be good neighbors.  He said they have met with Staff five 

times and have changed the plan 3 or 4 times and tried to get the best of everybody’s 

comments and look at everything with the City Planner and the City Manager.  They 

don’t want to be bad guys and make Jacob a bad road.  He said they are willing to take 

information and thoughts and go from there.  He said they want to know what the City 

would like and how it fits best into their design so they can move forward.  He said 

they addressed with the School District about backing out onto Tuscany.  They said 

that is not a concern for them at all.  It happens everywhere.  Mel, from the School 

Board said that. 

- Ed Dickie stated that half of Staff feels that the access on Jacob Lane should be 

closed, that it’s a park access.  The other half feels that because it is on the Master Plan 

that it should be a road as the Master Plan calls.  It is the Council’s call.  He said for 

Council to tell Staff how they want to handle that road. 

- Herb Basso feels there will be less traffic to Jacob if there is another access to the 

park too.  Some will come on Tuscany and some will come on Jacob.  He said by 

design you can slow people down. 

- Jerry Amundsen asked if a vicinity map is available.  It gave an idea of circulation. 

- Jarett Waite asked for the plan of the parking to show citizens. 

- Todd Olsen, City Engineer, said that the School District had come up with plans 

years ago before any of the players were involved.  Their access they had talked about 

was coming up Jacob and along the south side and coming back out to Patricia.  After 

the discussion they talked about participating with the curb and gutter off of Patricia 

and not having concerns about the traffic and houses entering on to Tuscany but their 

initial thought would be their access would be Patricia and Tuscany for parking.   

- Jerry Amundsen said at the meeting he went to with the School Board a couple of 

months ago, they didn’t have any plans in the near future for the school.  They have to 

fill other schools before this one even comes on board.  They have sold the property 

that the high school was going to go on.   

- Ed Dickie said that going back to Patricia, they do have the two accesses.  The City 

Planner recommends that that goes in at this time because the School District is willing 

to pay their portion and it helps with the traffic.  The recommendation from Staff right 

now is that is one of the roads that get looked at. 

- David Whitehead, 2167 Jacob Drive, said he understands why residents don’t want 

Jacob to go through.  He said when the residents moved in on Jacob Drive, they 

encroached on everybody else that was on the frontier of Santa Clara.  Then when 

Village on the Heights moved in we were concerned because of all the kids on Jacobs 

Drive.  He said he knows the Council will make the best decision for the future for the 

community because it is going to continue to build out and fill in.  He said that 

Paradise Village is a commercial development with no permanent residents.  It is a 

resort community.  It has worked out really well.  The wash is a concern.  When the 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 6 

July 6, 2016 

water comes over that, it won’t be drivable, but it won’t happen very often.  He said 

Paradise Village is self-contained.  They have 3 accesses and they are connected in 

between.  He said they are trying to keep it self-contained because one of the 

complaints that you get with a rental community is you don’t want it attached to a 

residential community.  He said their concern is they have a lot of people crossing the 

street with the amenities there is that going to be an issue for safety?  He thinks the 

developer of Paradise Village would like to keep it self-contained but understands that 

it may not be possible. 

- Jarett Waite asked if David Whitehead foresees changing plans if that road does go 

through. 

- David Whitehead said the initial plan wasn’t for that road to be there but for the water 

to channel through.  The change would be to put the road right through the two 

neighborhoods but that would connect right to the park. 

- Brad Hays said that with the development of Cobble Creek with their extension of 

Tuscany to the park what he would like to recommend is that the City take the 

pavement and to up to the pickle ball courts and complete that part of the parking lot 

and do nothing with the rest of Rachel Drive until the School District comes in. 

-Allen Lyle, Cobble Creek Town Homes Developer, said that this plan is a great plan.  

He wants the residents to know that they are on their side.  He said he wants to meet 

their concerns and needs.  Their motto has always been that they build quality 

condominiums at affordable prices.  Doing a quality community means a lot to him.  

He said they don’t use realtors so the money can be passed on to the buyers.  He said 

he makes a plea to the Council tonight.  He said the developers have cut out 13 units.  

He said he asks that with the 2 ½ acres in the middle, it being a park within a park if 

the City would split 50%-50% on the fees that they would do for park fees to be able to 

make that area really nice with a huge pool, clubhouse and play.  That would help them 

cut those costs and pass them on to the buyers.  He said their first choice would be not 

to tie into Paradise Village because they’re a nightly rental and we will be a little 

community of residents.  He said they would like to keep it that way.  He said they 

would like to go out through Patricia and Tuscany.  He would like to see Jacob blocked 

off too.  He said maybe something could be put in that in the future if the road needs to 

be hooked up they can do that.  He said they will do whatever the Council 

recommends.  If the City puts up a crash gate they can eventually take it off if they 

need to. 

- Jarett Waite asked where the crash gate would be. 

- Allen Lyle said it would be right on the property line. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said you would want to get the gate inside the park. 

- Herb Basso asked Allen Lyle if the City splits the fees would their amenities be 

available to everyone.  He said if they are going to lessen any kind of impact fees it 

should be a benefit for all because everyone is paying them. 

- Allen Lyle said this would be keeping their residents off of the City’s properties and 

keep them home. 

- Jarett Waite said that if there is a crash gate between Paradise Village and this 

development does that meet our codes?   

- Mayor Rosenberg said it wouldn’t be a through street except when the City decides to 

open it.  It’s an emergency access so there would be two accesses.  There are a 

multitude of things that can be done but there is not one that makes everybody 100% 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 7 

July 6, 2016 

happy.   

- Ed Dickie said if that is the Council’s decision when it comes down, that there is a 

crash gate there, Patricia would have to go in as a second access.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that Patricia is already a dedicated road.  It has been dedicated 

before any of these properties developed.  He stated that Cobble Creek is under 100 

units.  The two accesses come into play when Tuscany at Cliff Rose is added.  Patricia 

will cover the increase that way.  The emergency fire access will go out through 

Paradise Village.  It will be closed so there is the problem of mixing the short-term 

rentals with the permanent neighborhood and then there is a crash gate in the park 

which allows Brad to open it when it’s needed but it could stay closed for the majority 

of the time.  That would eliminate a lot of through traffic down on Jacob.  The crash 

gate doesn’t stop pedestrians.  There was discussion on where the crash gates should 

go.  There was also a discussion of driveways on Patricia.  They also discussed a loop 

road through the park.  It would be just a park road.  There could be a pedestrian access 

on Jacob.  It would be open all the time.   

- Brad Hays said that if they want a connection, it would make more sense to go on the 

north side along the wash because otherwise you are going through the playground, the 

basketball courts, and the trails. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said it would be tight going along the wash and with the splash 

pad. 

- Ken Sizemore expressed his concern with the backing up onto the road.   

- Ed Dickie said there could even be a back alley road just for those.  That would be 

something unique.  He said those work pretty well and in a situation like this that might 

be ideal.  It’s something to look at. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that Staff has given a recommendation so Council can take 

things under advisement and repeat this conversation next week.  We can give Staff 

some input and they can revise their recommendation that is presented next week.  

There is going to be a room full of residents.  The developer is past Planning 

Commission and past all the public hearings.  Public comment right now is by grace of 

the Council.  There has to be two permanent accesses.  Patricia provides the open 

second.  One of the things that makes Paradise Village successful is by our ordinance, 

they have to be isolated.  Our ordinance forces those projects to be isolated from the 

neighborhood to some degree so that the neighborhood conflict isn’t going on.   

- Ken Sizemore said that the Council all confers that Jacob isn’t a dedicated street 

through the park.  That the park is going to be parking lot.  There is probably going to 

be a crash gate somewhere there that divides the traffic so there isn’t that flow up and 

down the street.  Is everyone agreed?  He said the only struggle he is having is the 

traffic study that was done for this.  What will happen when there is Patricia and 

Tuscany as the main accesses?  Does that traffic study still apply?  The other issue is 

the units fronting Tuscany. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that there isn’t a traffic study only a recommendation.  He said 

that he feels for the residents that front Patricia but that road has been dedicated and 

planned since before their subdivision was built.  

- Ken Sizemore asked the developers if this discussion resolved the questions they had.  

Do they know where they are moving? 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked if the Council was okay eliminating the access to Paradise 

Village. 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 8 

July 6, 2016 

- The Council all said they were.  Mayor Rosenberg asked if the City Engineer, Public 

Safety, Planning were okay with it.  He said he won’t be here next week and Tode 

Hafen will be Mayor Pro Tem. 

- Ed Dickie said he thinks what Jack Taylor will say is that he has always seen Jacob as 

a through road.  He is okay if that is the decision. 

 

3. Discussion of possible uses of the back ½ acre of the Rosenlof Property across from 

City Hall where the home currently sits. 

 

- Herb Basso said he went through the house and the property.  One of two choices 

comes to his mind.  Does the City want to be landlords or not?  Do we want to sell it?  

He doesn’t think the City ought to be landlords to residents.  It could some kind of a 

business that fits or sell it.  We should not be in the residential business.  There are two 

businesses looking for something that size.  It wouldn’t take much to fix it up and sell 

it.  There is a market to lease.  There is probably enough parking for a business.  The 

parking would be the challenge.  The house has some settlement issues.   

- Ken Sizemore said he thinks it would be a big mistake to lose that asset.  Why give it 

up?  He said he thinks a residential lease is appropriate.   

- Herb Basso would love to move to commercial if the City is going to lease it out. 

- Corey Bundy said it would need to have 16 parking stalls.  He said he is fine with the 

residential use as long as Council understands that there will be some investment to get 

it out to a residential standard.  

- Mayor Rosenberg said there would need to be two units made there to make it an 

affordable rental unit. 

- Corey Bundy said they will have to look at it and evaluate it. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said there should be a proposal if it is going to be converted to a 

rental.  Here is what it is going to cost to upgrade it, here is what the projected revenue.  

He said it needs to be run through a couple of scenarios and see what the greatest 

return is and talk about those numbers.  He said it would be cool to have two 

affordable housings up there.  The City Council’s direction is to follow the ordinance 

and see about affordable housing. 

- Ed Dickie said that they are working with someone now and with Corey to get the old 

mercantile ready to go.   

- Corey Bundy said that DeFoure didn’t present a plan.  The building is an old 

building.  It doesn’t have insulation.  It needs a structural review.  He said he went 

down and met with DeFoure and they wanted to proceed like they didn’t meet with 

them.  If someone comes into the City and wants to change the building occupancy it 

needs to be put on paper.  All that he has received are sketch drawings.  A 

representative said they will get an architect and a design but Corey said he hasn’t seen 

it yet. 

- Ed Dickie said that they turned back the Rap Tax funds.  The others gave us a 

detailed list of what they are spending the Rap Tax funds on.  That will be on the next 

Council Meeting to approve a resolution on how we handle that. 

- Jerry Amundsen asked what the Council thought about, in the instance of the 

developments going on, engineers providing a kmz file of the development that lands 

right into Google Earth.  Then Council can pull up Google Earth as see how it situates 

with the surrounding development.  He said he thinks it’s easy to convert it and they 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 9 

July 6, 2016 

can just email it to the City and Ed could pull up Google Earth.  He can get details and 

he will experiment with it to see how long it takes to do it.  It would be useful to see all 

the connectivity.  It can be a part of their preliminary plat.       

 

3. Staff Reports: 

 

Brock Jacobsen 

- He said that the fiscal year was just finished off and we have started a new one.  The 

Budget Amendment was done at a Special Meeting last Thursday.  There are some big 

purchases that are happening.   

- League of Cities and Towns is in September (14th-16th). 

- We have two new part time employees: in administration and court.  They will be great 

additions.  Their names are Misty and Gina and they will come to Council so they can be 

introduced. 

- Jack Taylor will repost the position for the employee he needs for the Public Works 

Department. 

- There is no bill yet for SHAC.  He said he spoke with Tiffany LeJoice who is over that 

now.  She said it is sitting on her desk.  He said he will cut a check for $32,000 now for 

her.   

 

Chief Dan Nelson 

- He said the crews are coming off of their mandatory two days off.  They have been in 

Pine Valley for the last few weeks.  There were three engines up there at one point.  They 

haven’t gone back out there yet.   

- The crews will be doing project work.  We get paid for the days off if we do 14 days 

straight. 

- We are getting ready for the new budget and spending money.   

- There have been no firework issues whatsoever. 

- Tomorrow there is going to be a small, quick burn in the corrals by Dutchman’s.  This is 

Kent Frei’s property right now but is going to belong to the LDS Church.  It is an 

agriculture burn. 

- The generator broke.  We have had to replace it with two generators. 

- The Razor has been on 3 calls.  One recently to Snow Canyon and one on Pioneer 

Parkway and the house call on Dutchman Drive. It was used by Police in the recent 

kidnapping case.  They also used it for a SWAT exercise. 

 

Brad Hays 

- He said that Parks has new personnel.  A young man named Brock Anderson, and a new 

young man named Jeff Lee.   

- The new entrance sign is finally under construction.  The footing is in the ground and it 

will be poured tomorrow.  It is pretty big.  The base is 16 feet wide and 6 feet across.  Paul 

Lilywhite is designing it.  We are working with Blake Electric to get solar light on the 

sign. 

- He thanked the Staff for working on the park across the street.  He said they did it in two 

days.  He said he was amazed to see how well everyone worked together.  They did a good 

job.  They also did all the bark.  Herb Basso donated all the bark. 

- He met with the BLM, Teresa Burke, Dave and Lyn Scott, and looked over the concept 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 10 

July 6, 2016 

plan.  They thought the plan looked good.  He said they will be bringing the concept plan 

to the Council on July 13 to see what the Council thinks of it.  The park has increased to 51 

acres.   

- He said they are still working on Canyon View.  The building is still being worked on.  

The plumbers and electricians have been there.  Hopefully the improvements will begin on 

it in 2 weeks. 

 

Corey Bundy 

- There were 85 homes built in Santa Clara last year.  It was a very good year.  He 

anticipates at least 50 this year. 

- There are a lot of inspections going on.   

- He is working with the CED to get some LED lights in the City Council Room.  He said 

he will come back with the pricing.  It should save the City a little money. 

- The DeFoure property in St. George hasn’t sold.  That is the major slow up. 

- Mayor Rosenberg talked about how Ken Matheson on Country Lane contacted him and 

said he spoke to Corey about a buyer that is interested in his home wanting to use the 

easement to access the property.  Corey told him it was more of a sewer access not a 

property access.  It is not a public access.   

 

 Mayor Rosenberg 

 - The wash work behind Country Lane is proceeding very well.  The Sand Hollow Wash 

 now is defined.  They will be starting on the new concrete section fairly quickly.  All that 

 material that is there stacked on the side will go away and the rock will go back in.  They 

 want the Mayor to talk to the Fire Crews about doing a burn in October on some of the 

 Tamarisk Trees and stuff pulled out of there.  He said he is happy with it.  Over time that 

 wash has crawled from the back of Sunset Plateau on the St. George City side all the way 

 across the open and was right behind the homes on Country Lane.  Every time there was 

 flooding it was right behind those homes creating a real issue.  The Flood Control 

 Authority has gone in and participated with the City of St. George and FEMA and they 

 have cleaned that out.  The residents are very pleased.   

 - He met with the College.  They are working on some new strategic planning and they are 

 starting to work on their academic programs.  They are looking at a lot of the polytechnic 

 type of programs a lot of engineering, applied sciences and business.  It is exciting. 

 - He went to the MPO Meeting and we pushed the Commissioners a little on the 

 transportation tax issue.  There is still no movement on Commissioner Iverson’s part to put 

 it on the ballot.  They have to decide in about a month.  They discussed a little about the 

 bus routes to Springdale.   

 - He reminded the Council that he will not be at the City Council Meeting next week. 

 - Ken Sizemore asked the Mayor what was happening on Dean Terry’s property.   

Mayor: It is part of the Sand Hollow Wash project.  

 - Mayor goes to CIB tomorrow.  He will sit on the hot seat and beg for money. Hopefully 

 they will give the City their request.  The FEMA money is set-aside for the City.  We have 

 cleared the title search on 3 of the 5 properties and are working on the other 2.  He said he 

 is hopeful that by the end of the month the last hurdle has been cleared and the money will 

 be on its way.   

 Ed Dickie- HAPPY BIRTHDAY to the Mayor tomorrow! 

 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 11 

July 6, 2016 

4. Executive Session: None 

 

5. Adjournment: 

 

Meeting Adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

    __________________________    Date Approved: ________________ 

Chris Shelley – City Recorder 

 


